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MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
HELD AT KEAN UNIVERSITY, UNION, NEW JERSEY
ON TUESDAY, MARCH 25, 2014

The meeting was called to order at 10:02 a.m. by Chairman Jacobs. The New Jersey Educational
Facilities Authority gave notice of the time, place and date of this meeting via fax and email on
February 28, 2014 to The Star Ledger, The Times and the Secretary of State and by posting the
notice at the offices of the Authority in Princeton, New Jersey. Pursuant to the New Jersey Open
Public Meetings Act, a resolufion must be passed by the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
in order to hold a session from which the public is excluded.

AUTHORITY MEMBERS PRESENT:

Roger B. Jacobs, Esq., Chairman

Ridgeley Hutchinson, Vice Chairman

Katherine Ungar

Louis Rodriguez : :

Andrew P. Sidamon-Eristoff, State Treasurer (represented by Steven Petrecca)
Rochelle Hendricks, Secretary of Higher Education (represented by Gregg Edwards)

AUTHORITY MEMBERS ABSENT:

Joshua Hodes, Treasurer

STAFF PRESENT:

Derek S. Hansel, Executive Director

Katherine Newell, Esq., Director of Risk Management

Marie P. Mueller, Controlier . :
Shery! A. Stitt, Director of Legisiative Strategy and Public Communications
Jennifer Soyka, Director of Project Management -

Steven P. Nelson, Project Manager

Jamie O'Donnell, Project and Communications Specialist

Sheila Toles, Executive Assistant/Human Resources Manager



ALSO PRESENT:

Kerstin Sundstrom, Esq., Governor’'s Authorities Unit
Clifford Rones, Esq., Deputy Attorney General

The Authority’s off-site meeting opened with Chairman Jacobs thanking the University for hosting the
meeting and inviting President Farahi to welcome the Members, staff and attendees.

ITEMS OF DISCUSSION

1.

Approval of the Minutes of the Meeting of January 28, 2014

The minutes of the meeting of January 28, 2014 were hand delivered to Governor Chris
Christie under the date of January 30, 2014, Mr. Hutchinson moved that the minutes of the
meeting be approved as presented; the motion was seconded by Mr. Rodriguez and passed
unanimously. ‘ ‘

Report of the Authority’s Au‘dit Committee and Adoption of Resolution Accepting the -
Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report for 2013 o

Mr. Hutchinson reported that the Audit Committee consisting of himself, Mr. Hodes and Mr.
Petrecca met on December 8, 2013 and March 17, 2014 with Nancy Gunza, Partner and
Andrew Lee, Manager of CliftonlarsonAllen (CLA) who had described the Audit process and
responsibilities and answered questions from Committee Members. Mr. Hutchinson invited
Ms. Gunza to describe parts of the financial statements. Ms. Gunza reported that the results
were an unmodified opinion (the highest form of opinion possible) and reported that CLA had -
identified no items of material weakness or significant deficiencies as it relates to internal
control. She reported that in regard to bond compliance there had not been any non-
compliant matters. Mr. Huichinson stated that the Audit Committee recommended the
approval of the 2013 financial statements.

Mr. Jacobs complimented Ms. Gunza and her team and thanked her for attending the
meeting. He also thanked the Audit Committee for their time. o

Mr. Petrecca moved the ado;ﬁtion of the following entitled resolution:
RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES
AUTHORITY ACCEPTING AND ADOPTING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT FOR 2013

The motion was seconded by Mr. Rodriguez and passed unanimously.

The adopted resolution and report is appended as Exhibit I.

Report on Operating and Construction Fund Statements and Disbursements

Ms. Mueller reviewed the Resuits of Operations and Budget Variance Analysis and reported
on the status of construction funds and related investments for February 28, 2014.

Mr. Hutchinson moved that the reports be accepted as presented; the motion was seconded
by Ms. Ungar and passed unanimously.

The reports are appended as Exhibit .



Resolution A_gpointihg_a_l Verification Agent in Connection with the Defeasance and
Redemption of NJEFA Princeton University Revenue Bonds, 2004 Series D

Ms. Soyka reported that Princeton University wants to defease approximately $12 million of their
bonds that are callable on July 1, 2014 and that the University would be using their commercial
paper program to effect the defeasance and that this will allow Princeton to take advantage of
low short-term rates. Ms. Soyka then asked Kevin Quinn, Bond Counsel of McCarter & English,
LLP to provide further details on the transaction. :

Mr. Quinn described the resolution.

Ms. Ungar moved the adoption of the following entitied resolution:
RESOLUTION APPROVING A LETTER OF INSTRUCTION AND ACTIONS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE DEFEASANCE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
AUTHORITY'S PRINCETON UNIVERSITY REVENUE BONDS, 2004 SERIES D

The motion was seconded by Mr. Rodriguez and passed unanimously.

The adopted resolution is appended as Exhibit Il

Resolution Authorizing Defeasance of Authority Bonds on Direction of Borrower

Ms. Soyka reported that the resolution would allow the Executive Director to do what is
necessary to accomplish a defeasance with monies provided by the borrower rather than a new
Authority bond issue without being required to bring each individual college’s defeasance before
the Authority's Board. She explained the conditions, which would include staff getting a
verification report; a defeasance opinion; follow any other requirements set forth in the
documents; and that the institution pay all costs related to the defeasance. Mr. Hansel stated
that the idea of the resolution is to facilitate an easy process by which the Authority’s clients can
make a financial decision.

Mr. Rodriguez moved the adoption of the following entitled resolution:

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DEFEASANCE OF AUTHORITY BONDS ON
DIRECTION OF BORROWER S

Thé motion was seconded by Ms. Ungar and passed unanimously.
The adopted resolution is appended as Exhibit IV.

Resolution Authorizing the Optional Redemption of Authority Bonds Upon Direction of
Borrower

Ms. Soyka reported that the resolution is similar fo the prior resolution but is for an optional
redemption with monies provided to the borrower.- She explained that there are a few actions
staff may have to undertake in connection with the direction to the Trustee to redeem the bonds
to make sure the process is in accordance with the bond documents. - However, there are no

legal opinions required for redemption and a verification report is not required. Ms. Soyka
advised that the institution will pay alf costs associated to the redemption.

Mr. Hutchinson moved the adoption of the foliowing entitied resolution:



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE OPTIONAL REDEMPTION OF
AUTHORITY BONDS UPON DIRECTION OF BORROWER

The motion was seconded by Ms. Ungar and passed unanimously.
The adopted resolution is appended as Exhibit V.

Resolgtion' of Appreciation to Kristen Middleton for 20 Years of Service fo the Authority

The Members were asked to consider the adoption of a resolution recognizing Kristen Middleton
for 20 years of service to the Authority.

Mr. Hutchinson moved the adoption of the folloWing entitled resolution:

RESOLUTiON OF APPRECIATION TO KRISTEN MIDDLETON FOR 20
YEARS OF SERVICE

The motion was seconded by Ms. Ungar and passed unanimously.

The adopted resolution is appended as Exhibit V.

Executive Director's Report

Mr. Hansel welcomed and introduced the Authority’s newest staff member, Project Manager
Steven Nelson. Mr. Hansel advised that Mr. Nelson has had a long and varied career in the
public finance investment banking industry and that staff is pleased to welcome him and
thinks he will make great contributions to the Authority. Mr. Hansel also recognized title
adjustments and congratulated Kristen Middleton, Jamie O'Donnell and Sheila Toles. He
also congratulated Jennifer Soyka who has been named Director of Project Management.

Mr. Hansel reported that it had been an extremely busy first quarter and that the Authority had
sold and closed the Princeton University and Fairleigh Dickinson University transactions
along with a very successful pricing for Montclair State University that will close in early April.
He reported that staff had sold and closed the first two state-backed bond programs for the
Higher Education Technology Infrastructure Fund (HET!) and the Higher Education
Equipment Leasing Fund (ELF) and is busy processing requisitions and distributing funds to
the Institutions across the State for those programs.’

Mr. Hansel reported that staff had distributed the Building Our Future grant agreements under
the terms of its Memorandum of Understanding with the Office of the Secretary of Higher
Education and that staff had begun the processing of initial requisitions for that program. He
advised that staff was working diligently to get the Higher Education Capital Improvement
Fund bonds, approved by the Members at the last meeting, sold and closed in April.

Mr. Hansel thanked and comméncfed Ms. Mueller and her staff for another great audit. He
stated that the Accounting staff do a great job and work really hard every year on the
Authority’s audit process.

Report on the Sale of NJEFA Revenue Bonds, Higher Education Equipment Leasing
Fund Program lssue, Series 2014, In the Amount of $89,340,000

Ms. Soyka reported that on January 30, 2014 the Authority successfully closed the Higher
Education Equipment Leasing Fund issue with $82,235,000 in Series 2014 A bonds which
funded the grants to the public colleges and $7,105,000 in Series 2014 B bonds which funded
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the grants to the private colleges. She reported that it had been a competitive transaction
and the winning bidder was J.P. Morgan Securties, LLC with a true interest cost of 1.98% and
a final maturity of June 1, 2023. :

A copy of the Bond Sale Summary for the issue is appended as Exhibit VIL.

Report on the Sale of NJEFA Revenue Bonds, Higher Education Technology
Infrastructure Fund Issue, Series 2014, In the Amount of $38,110,000 :

Ms. Soyka reported that on January 30, 2014 the Authority successfully closed the Higher
Education Technology Infrastructure Fund Issue in the amount of $38,110,000 fo fund grants
under the program. She reported that it had been a competitive transaction and the winning

" bidder was Morgan Stanley & Co., LLC with a final maturity of June 1, 2028 and a true

interest cost of 3.16%.
A copy of the Bond Sale Summary for the issue is appended as Exhibit ViII.

Report on the Sale of NJEFA Revenue Bonds, Moniclair State University Issue, Series

2014 A, In the Amount of $189,365,000

Ms. Soyka reported that the Series 2014 A bonds funded various projects for Montclair State

University including the University's match for the science building; the school of business;

. refunding portions of several series of outstanding bonds; and the design, construction,

equipping and furnishing of other facilities around the campus including Morehead Hall and
the University's School of Communications and Media. Ms. Soyka reported that it had been a
fixed rate, negotiated transaction with Barclays Capital, Inc. as Senior Manager. The bonds
have a final maturity of July 1, 2044 with a true interest cost of 4.22%. She reported that the
saving portion of the transaction resuited in just over $4.1 miliion in net present value savings
of 7.76%. The transaction priced on March 4, 2014 and is expected to close April 3, 2014.

Christoph Muelbert of Barclays Capital, Inc. thanked the Authority for the opportunity to work
on the fransaction. . -

A copy of the Bond Sale Summary for the issue is appended as Exhibit IX.

Legislative Update

Ms. Stitt reported that Governor Christie had introduced his fiscal yéar 2015 budget to the
Legislature last month.

Ms. Sttt reported that a number of bills had been recently considered in Committee that

focused on college affordability and student loan debt. She reporied that Assemblyman
Cryan and Assemblywoman Riley had introduced a package of 20 bills which focused on
areas including college readiness, completion rate and tuition rates. Ms. Stift noted that A-

* 2815 directly affects the Authority in that it would require the Authority to annually publish a

report detailing the debt ratio of each public institution of higher education in the prior
academic year. The report would be required to be submitted to the Governor and
Legislature no later than January 1% following the academic year for which the report is being
prepared. '

Ms. Stitt advised that she would report on the other bills as more information is made
available. '



Prior to requesting a motion to go into Executive Session, Chairman Jacobs thanked President Farahi
for his kind words about the Authority and welcomed Steven Nelson, Project Manager to the staff.

13. Executive Session

Mr. Hutchinson moved the adoption ofa resolution of the Authority permitting an Executive
Session to discuss a personnel matter; the motion was seconded by Ms. Ungar and passed
unanimously. : ' .

Mr. Edwards moved that the public session be reconvened; the motion was seconded by Mr.
Rodriguez and passed unanimously.

14. Next Meeting Date

Mr. Jacdbs reminded everyon'e that the next scheduled Authority meeting would be on Tuesday,
May 20, 2014 at 9:00 a.m. at the Authority’s offices and requested a motion to adjourn.

Mr. Rodriguez moved that the meeting be adjourned at 11:28 a.m.; the motion was seconded
by Mr. Hutchinson and passed unanimously. '

Respectfully submitted,

Derek S. Hansel
Secretary



EXHIBIT I

RESOLUTION OF THE NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
ACCEPTING AND ADOPTING THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
- INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT FOR 2013
Adopted: March 25, 2014

WHEREAS: The New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”)
annually prepares financial statements and this year engaged the
independent auditing firm of CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (the “Independent
Auditors”) to perform an audit of the Authority’s financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2013 (the “2013 Financial Statements™);
and '

WHEREAS: The members of the Authority’s Audit Committee have received and
" reviewed the 2013 Financial Statements and the unmodified Report of
the Independent Auditors thereon dated March 18, 2014 (the

“Independent Auditors’ Report™); and '

WHEREAS: The members of the Authority’s Audit Committee have met with
' representatives of the Independent Auditors and have discussed with
them the 2013 Financial Statements and the Independent Auditors’

Report; and

WHEREAS: The members of the Authority have received the 2013l Financial
Statements and the Independent Auditors’ Report; and

WHEREAS: The members of the Authority’s Audit Committee have recommended
that the members of the Authority accept the 2013 Financial Statements
and the Independent Auditors’ Report; and

WHEREAS: The members of the Authority wish to accept and approve the 2013
Financial Statéments and the Independent Auditors’ Report.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NEW JERSEY
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY AS FOLLOWS: :

SECTION 1. The Authority hereby accepts and approves the 2013 Financial
Statements and the Independent Auditors’ Report, as attached hereto and
incorporated by reference as if set forth in full herein.

SECTION 2. This resolution shall take effect in accordance with N.1.S.A. 18A:72A-
4(i).




Mr. Petrecca___ moved that the foregoing resolution be adopted as introduced and
read, which motion was seconded by ___ Mr. Rodriguez___and upon roll call the following
members voted: _

AYE: Roger B. Jacobs
Ridgeley Hutchinson
Louis Rodriguez
Katherine Ungar
Andrew Sidamon-Eristoff (represented by Steven Petrecca)
Rochelle Hendricks (represented by Gregg Edwards)

 NAY: " Nomne
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT:  Joshua Hodes

The Chair thereupon declared said motion carried and said resolution adopted.

Audit resolution — 3/25/14
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

Management of the Authority is responsible for the preparation, integrity, and fair presentation of these
financial statements. The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America and, consequently, they reflect certain amounts based
upon the best estimates and judgment of management. '

" The financial statements have been audited by the independent firm of CliftortarsonAllen LLP, which was
given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data, including minutes of all meetings of the
Authority. The independent auditors’ opinion is presented on page 2.

The Authority maintains a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
executed in accordance with management's authorization, that financial statemenis are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, that assets of the
Authority are properly safeguarded, and that the covenants of all financing agreements are honored. There
are, however, inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of internal control, including the
possibility of human error and the circumvention of controls. Accordingly, even an effective internal control
system can provide only reasonable assurance that its goals are achieved.

Consistent with Executive Order No. 122, the Authority, through its Audit and Evaluation Committees,
engages the independent auditors. The Audit and Evaluation Committees comprise individuals who are not
employees of the Authority, and who meet certain standards of independence and financial expertise. The
Audit Committee periodically meets with the independent auditors, and is responsible for assisting the
Members of the Authority in overseeing the Authority’s compliance with legal, regulatory and ethical
requirements, as well as overseeing the integrity and quality of the Authority’s financial statements. The
independent auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee. :

W Ao Wil Lo

Derek S. Hansel Marie P, Mueler
Executive Director . Controller
March 18, 2014
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CliftontarsonAllen LLP
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Clif‘ton rsonAllen

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Management and Members of
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
Princeton, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the New Jersey
Fducational Facilities Authority (the Authority), 2 component unit of the State of New Jersey, which
comprise the statements of net position as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes
to the financial statements. :

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant fo the preparation and fair presentation
of financia) statéments that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. C

Auditors’ Responsibility o

Our responsibility is to express an. opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. ‘

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion. '

@

; A independent member of Nexia internationat
INTERNATIONAL



Management and Members of
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the business type activities of the Authority as of December 31, 2013, and the respective changes
in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles .
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis, the schedule of funding progress, and the schedule of employer contributions to the
OPEB plan on pages 4 - 6 and page 19, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial staterents. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do mot provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information ,

Ouwr audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The supplemental financial information is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not 2 required part of the basic financial statements.

The supplemental financial information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statement and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Prior Year Financial Statements

The financial statements of New Jersey Educatiopal Facilities Authority (a component unit of the State of
New Jersey) as of December 31, 2012, were audited by other auditors whose report dated March 12, 2013,
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 18, 2014 on
our congideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.
LLA”

CliftonLarsonAlien LLP

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania
March 18, 2014

(3}



NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Introduction

This section of the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority’s (the Authority) annual financial report presents
management’s discussion and analysis of the Authority’s financial performance during the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2013 and the two immediately preceding years. Tt should be read in conjunction with the
Authority’s financial statements and accompanying notes.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Authority is supported entirely by fees charged for the services it provides. Accordingly, the Authority is
considered an Enterprise Fund and utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. The Basic Financial Statements for an
Enterprise Fund include: Statements of Net Position; Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position; and Statements of Cash Flows. These statements provide, respectively, a view of the Authority’s
financial position as of the end of the year, a description of the financial activity during the year, and a description
of the cash activity during the year. ‘

Financial Highlights 2013:

o  The Authority issued over $119 million of conduit debt for educational institutions during 2013.
o (Cash and Investments represent a;pproxirnateiy 98% of Total Assets at the end of 2013.

s The Authority’s 2013 operating margin (net operating income as a percentage of operating revenues) was
30%. :

e At December 31, 2013, Net Position represents 2.5 times 2013 Total Operating Expenses.

During 2013, the Authority’s volume of financing activity was approximately $91 million less than 2012. The
reduced volume was due to market conditions and transaction timing. The Authority continued to work with the
State’s public and private institutions on their multi-year plans to invest in the upgrading of their capital facilities,
technology infrastructures and capital equipment to accommodate growing demand for higher education. The
Authority also helped New Jersey colleges and universities restructure outstanding issues for the greatest benefit
to the institutions.

)



NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

‘Condensed Financial ¥aformation

The following table represents condensed balance sheet information and changes between December 31, 2012 and
December 31, 2013 and between Deceraber 31, 2011 and December 31, 2012:

Increase Increase
: . _ (Pecrease) (Decrease)

2013 : 2012 2011 2012102013 2011to 2012

Current Assets $ 6917902 § 5785871 $ 4,550,043 19.57% 27.16%
Capital Assets, Net . 67,556 $1,450 110,140 (17.10%) {26.01%)
Total Assets : 6,985,458 5867361 . 4,660,183 19.06% 25.90%
Current Liabilities 228,809 23'5,102 254,185 (2.68%) (7.51%)
Noncurrent Liabilities 1,155,497 076949 810,841 18.28% 20.49%
Total Liabilities 1,384,306 1,212,051 1,065,026 14.21% 13.80%

Total Net Position $ 5601152 $ 4655310 B 3,595,157 2032%  29.49%

The following table represents condensed information. from the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
in Net Position, and changes between 2012 and 2013 and between 2011 and 2012: :

Increase {ncrease
(Decrease) (Decrease)
2013 2012 2011 2012 to 2013 2011 to 2012
Operating Revemnes: '
Administrative Fees $ 3,187412 $ 3,383,100 $ 3,355,088 {(5.78%) 0.83%
Total Operating Revenues 3,187 412 3,383,100 3,355,088 " (5.78%) 0.83%
Operating Expenses: .
Salaries and Related Expenses 1,470,618 1,532,384 1,587,?23 {4.03%) (3.50%)
" Provision for Postemployment Benefits 181,704 168,100 562,000 8.09% (70.09%)
General Expenses 593,236 626,107 . 691,803 (5:25%) {9.50%)
Total Operating Expenses 2,245,558 2,326,591 2,841,726 (3.48%) - (18.13%)
Net Operating Income 941,854 1,056,509 513,362 (10.85%) 105.80%
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment Income 3,988 3,644 9425 9.44% (61.34%)
Transfer to the State of New Jersey - (8,000,000)
Change in Net Position 945,842 1,060,153 (7,477,213) {10.78%) (114.18%)
Net Position - Beginning of Year 4,655,310 3,595,157 11,072,370 29.49% (67.53%)
Net Position - End of Year $ s5.601,152  $ 4655310 & 3,595,157 20.32% 29.49%

&)



NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

Analysis of Overall Financial Position and Results of Operations

The Authority’s solid financial position and strong operating results continued.

Revenues

The Authority’s revenues are dexived primarily from two fees; annual fees charged with respect to existing bond
issues, and initial fees charged with respect to the issuance of new debt. Total revenues for 2013 decreased
approximately $196,000 from 2012 and total revenues for 2012 increased approximately $28,000 from 2011.

Expenses

Operating expenses in 2013 decreased 3.5% from 2012 and decreased 18.1% in 2012 from 2011. The decrease in
operating expenses from 2011 is primarily related to a decrease in the provision for post retirement benefits.

Assets and Liabilities

Net position increased $0.9 million, or 20.3% from 2012 to 2013 and increased $1.1 million, or 29.5% from 2011
to 2012, ‘

Contacting the Anthority’s Financial Management

If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Office of the
Controller; New- Jersey Educational Facilities Authority, 103 College Road East; Princeton, New Jersey 08540-
6612. Readers are invited to visit the Authority’s website at www.njefa.com. '

)



NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAYL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2612

2013 2012,
ASSEIS
CURRENT ASSEIS
Cash 3 124,931 $ 77,838
Investments, Principally U.S. Government Obligations 6,751,242 5,130,603
Fees Receivable : 25,000 564,823
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 16,729 12,607
Total Carrent Assets . 6,917,902 5,785,871
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital Assels, at Cost, Less Accumulated Depreciation of
$540.605 and $625,625 During 2013 and 2012, Respectively 67,556 §1,490
Total Assets : 6,985,458 5,867,361
LIABILITIES AND NEI POSITION
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 228,809 235,102
NONCURRENY LIABILIYIES
Posternployment Benefits other than Pens ion 1,130,284 948,580
Project Obligations : 25,213 28,369
. Total Noncurrent Liabilities _ 1,155497 976,949
Total Liabilities 1,384,306 1,212,051
NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets 67,556 $1,490
Unrestricted 5,533,596 4,573,820
Total Net Position ' $ 5601152 $  4,655310

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

OPERATING REVENUES
Administrative Fees

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and Related Expenses
General and Administrative Expenses
Provision for Postemployment Benefits
Professional Fees
Total Operating Expenses

NE¥ OPERATING INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUE
mvestment Income

NET CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Net Position - Beginning of Year

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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2013 2012
$ 3187412 3,383,100
1,470,618 1,532,384
535,262 538,630
181,704 168,100
57,974 87477
2,245,558 2.326,591
941,854 1,056,509
3,988 3,644
945,842 1,060,153
4,655,310 3,595,157
$ 5601152 4,655,310




NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

_ 2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ‘
Cash Received from Administrative Fees $ 3723113 $ 2,848,243
Cash Payments for Operating Expenses ' (2,046,212) (2,144,428)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities _ 1,676,901 703,815
CASHFLOWS FROMINVES TING ACTIVITIES .
Purchase of Investments : (11,564,735) (7,974,092)
Sale and Maturity of Investments 9,943,535 7,258,092
Investment Income 4,549 2,485
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities (1,616,651) (713,515)
CASHFLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Capital Assets {13,157) {6,488)
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related Financing Activities (13,157} {6,488)
NET INCREASE (DECRFEAST) IN CASH 47,093 {16,188) .
Cash - Beginning of Year 77,838 94,026
CASH-END OF YEAR $ 124,931 $ 77,838
RECONCHIATION OF NET OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATENG ACTIVITIES :
Net Operating Income $ 041,854 $ 1,086,509
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities: '
Depreciation : C27 35,138
Changes in Asséts and Liabilities: ‘
Fees Receivable 539,823 {537,676)
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets ' {4,122) 2,819
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses (6,293) (19,083)
Project Obligations (3,156) (1,992)
Postemployment Benefits other than Pension 181,704 168,100
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ 1676501 3 703,815
SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Change in Fair Value of Tnvestments $ {361) 3 1,159

See accompanying Nates to Financial Statements.
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NOTE &

NOTE 2

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

ORGANIZATION AND FUNCTION OF THE AUTHORITY

The New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority™), a component unit of the State of
New Jersey, was created under the provisions of Chapter 106 of New Jersey Public Laws of 1966 as a
public body corporate and politic. The powers of the Authority permit the sale of notes, bonds and
other obligations to support the construction, acquisition and equipping of educational facilities for
public and private institutions of higher education in the State of New Jersey. The Authority is also
authorized, pursuant to statutory amendments, to issue State supported bonds to fund matching grants
to qualified public libraries for capital improvements. The obligations issued by the Authority are
conduit debt and are not guaranteed by, nor do they constitute a debt or obligation of, the State of
New Jersey.

The Authority is exempt from both federal and state taxes.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounts are maintained on thé accrual basis of accounting in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In its accounting and financial reporting, the Authority follows the pronouncements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Administrative Fees »

The Authority charges administrative fees to its client institutions for which bond and note sales have
been completed. Such fees are considered operating revenue and are charged for services related to
the structuring and administration of Authority {inancings, investment management of bond proceeds,
monitoring of financial performance and other project costs and services. These fees are recognized
as earped. The fees are used to provide sufficient funds to ensure that the Authority’s operating
expenses will be met, and that sufficient reserves will be available to provide for the Authority’s
needs. ‘ ‘

- Capital Assels

Capital assets, which consist of furniture and equipment, are carried at cost and depreciated over their

useful lives using the straight-line method.

Conduit Debi _

Due to the fact that the bonds and notes issued by the Authority are nonrecourse conduit debt
obligations of the Authority, the Authority has, in effect, none of the risks and rewards of the related
financings. Accordingly, with the exception of certain fees generated as a result of the financing
transaction, the financing transaction is given no accounting recognition in the accompanying’
financial statements. At December 31, 2013, the amount of conduit debt outstanding totaled

$5,056,049,782.

(10)



‘NOTE 2

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Recent Accounting Standard :

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 65, Ifems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities
(“GASB 657). The objective of this Statement is to either (a) properly classify certain items that were
previously reported as assets and liabilities as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of
resources or {b) recognize certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as
outflows of resources (expenses or expenditures) or inflows of resources (revenues). The provisions
of this Statement were effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15,
2012. This statement has no effect on the Authority’s financial statements.

In March 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections - 2012 (“GASB 66™). The
objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local
governmental entifies by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two
pronouncements — Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in
Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The provisions of this Statement were
effective for financial statements for periods beginning after December 15, 2012. This statement has
no effect on the Authority’s financial statements. : ‘

Tn June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting Jor Pensions
(“GASB 68”). The objective of this Statement is to improve the information provided in government
financial reports about pension-related financial support provided by certain nonemployer entities that
make contributions to pension plans that are used to provide benefits to the employees of other
entities. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after June 15, 2014. The Authority has not completed the process of evaluating the impact of GASB
68 on its financial statements. ‘

In January 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of
Government Operations. Statement No. 69 establishes accounting and financial reporting standards
related to government combinations and disposals of government operations. This statement has no
effect on the Authority’s financial statements. ‘

In April 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange
Financial Guarantees. Statement No. 70 specifies the information required to be disclosed by
governments that extend non-exchange financial guarantees. The Authority has not completed the
process of evaluating the impact of GASB 70 on its financial statements.

In November 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date (“GASB 717). The objective of this Statement is to improve
accounting and financial reporting by addressing an issue in GASB 68, concerning fransition
provisions related to certain pension contributions made to defined pension plans prior to
implementation of that Statement made by employers and nonemployer contributing entities. The
Authority has not completed the process of evaluating the impact of GASB 71 on its financial
statements, '

(11



NOTE 3

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
At year end, the Authority’s bank balance was $128,570 all of which was covered by FDIC insurance.

The types of securities which are permitted investments for Authority funds are established by New
Jersey Statutes. All funds of the Authority may be invested in obligations of, or guaranteed by, the
United States Government. In addition, certain funds of the Authority may be invested in: obligations
of agencies of the U.S. government; obligations of, or guaranteed by, the State of New Jersey;
collateralized certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements; commercial paper; and other
securities which shall be authorized for the investment of fonds in the custody of the Treasurer of the
State of New Jersey.

Investments of the Authority comprise the following:

2013 2012
Investments: ‘ '
1.S. Treasury Bills $ 6,210,485 $ 5,129,406
Money Market Mutual Fund ' 540,757 1,197

Total Investments : $ 6,751,242 $ 5,130,603

In 2013 and 2012, the Authority had $540,757 and $1,197, respectively, invested in a money market
mutual fund, which vests in short-term and other obligations of the U:S. Treasury. All investments
are carried at fair value. i

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Stgtexﬁent No. 40, Deposit and
Investment Risk Disclosures (“GASB 407), the Authority has assessed the Custodial Credit Risk, the
Concentration of Credit Risk, Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk of its Cash and Investments.

(a) Custodial Credit Risk — The Authority’s deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they
are not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are: uncollateralized, collateralized
with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held
by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent but not in the depositor-
government’s name. The deposit risk is that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, the Authority will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to
recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Authority’s
investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are
not registered in the name of the Authority and are held by either: the counterparty or the
counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the Authority’s name. The risk is that, in
the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the Authority will not be able to
recover the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an

ouiside party.
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

NOTE3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Authority’s bank balances were not exposed to
custodial credit risk since the full amount was covered by FDIC insurance.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the Authority’s investments consisted of U.S. Treasury
Bills in the amount of $6,210,485 and $5,129,406, respectively. Since the investments are
registered in the Authority’s name they are not exposed to custodial credit risk. The Authority
does not have a written policy for investment securities custodial credit risk but its practice
has been to maintain a safekeeping account for the securities at a financial institution.

(b} Concentration of Credit Risk — This is the risk associated with the amount of investments the

(©)

Authority has with any one issuer that exceed five percent of ifs total investments.
Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government and investments in
mutuzal funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments are excluded from this
requirement. The Authority places no limit on the amount it may invest in any one issuer, but
its practice has been to invest, almost exclusively, in U.S. Treasury Securities. At December
31,2013 or 2012, the Authority was not exposed to a concentration of credit risk.

Credit Risk - GASB 40 requires that disclosure be made as to the credit rating of all debt
security investments except for obligations of the U.S. government or obligations explicitly
guaranteed by the U.S. government. This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an
iuvestment will not falfill its obligations. In general, the “Authority does not have an
investment policy regarding credit risk except fo the extent previously outlined under the
Authority’s investment policy. The Authority’s Money Market Mutual Fund is not rated.

(d) Interest Rate Risk — This is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair

value of an jnvestment. The Authority does not have a written policy that limits investoent
maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from interest rate
fluctuations, but the Authority does from time to time evaluate its investment portfolio to
determine if, based on the interest rate environment, other investment vehicles would provide
higher yields that lower the cost and risk. As of December 31, 2013, the U.S. Treasury Bills
had maturities ranging from January 3, 2013 through July 25, 2013.

For the years ended December 3 1, 2013 and 2012, investment income comprised the following:

2013 2012
Interest BEamings $ 4,549 $ 2,485
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments (561) 1,159
Total Investment Income : 3 3,988 $ 3,644

(13)



NOTE 4

NOTE 5

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

RETIREMENT PLANS

The Authority’s employees participate in the Public Employees Retirement System of New Jersey -
(PERS), a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit plan. The Authority’s contribution is
determined by State statute and is based upon an actuarial computation performed by the PERS. All
benefits are established by State statute. The Authority’s required contribution and pension expense
for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 was $122,993, $159,649 and $148,697,
respectively. Employees of the Authority also contribute a percentage of their wages to the pension
system; the percentage range of contributions, as determined by PERS, was 6.78% effective July
2013, 6.64% effective July 2012, 6.5% effective October 2011 and 5.5% prior to that back to 2009.

The PERS is administered by the New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits. The Division issnes
a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. That report may be obtained by writing to: State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions
and Benefits, P.0. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295.

Employees hired after July 1, 2007 participate in PERS, the defined benefit plan, up to the annual

" maximum wage for social security. The employee contributions based on wages in excess -of the

annual maximum wage are coniributed to the Defined Contribution Retirement Program. (DCRP). The
Authority contributes 3% to the participants’ accounts on wages in excess of the social security limit.

In addition to the Plans noted above, employees may elect to make tax-deferred contributions to a 457
deferred compensation plan. '

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION

The Authority, as permitted by Chapter 88, P.L. 1974 as amended by Chapter 436, P.L. 1981,
provides postemployment medical benefits for eligible retired employees through participation in the
New Jersey Health Benefits Program as sponsored and administered by the Stafe of New Jersey. The
Authority does not issue a publicly available financial report for the plan which for financial reporting
purposes is considered a single employer defined benefit health care plan. Employees become eligible
for these benefits upon retirement after 25 years of creditable service in the PERS.

Benefit provisions for the plan are established and amended by the Authority’s Members, and there 1s

no statutory requirement for the Authority to continue this plan for future Authority employees. The
Plan is a non-contributory plan with all payments for plan benefits being funded by the Authority.

(14)



NOTE 5

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION (CONTINUED)

The Authority applies the accounting provisions of GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This statement
establishes guidelines for reporting costs associated with “other postemployment benefits” (OPEB).
OPEB costs are actuarially calculated based on benefits (other than pensions), that current and retired
employees have accrued as a result of their respective years of employment service.

The Authority’s ammual OPEB cost for the plan is calculated based on the annual required
contribution “ARC,” an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Staternent 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to

~ cover normal costs each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess)

over a period not to exceed thirty years. The Authority’s annual OPEB cost for the year ended
December 31, 2013 and 2012 and the related information. for the plan are as follows (dollar amounts
in thousands):

2013 . 2012
Annual Required Contribution 3 1,130 $ 948
Interest on the Net OPEB Obligation ‘ 38 31,
Amortization of the Net OPEB Obligation (986) {811}
Tncrease in Net OPEB Obligation 182 168
Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year 948 780
Net OPEB Obligation - End of Year | $ L130 $ 948

The Authority’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPERB cost contributed to the plan and
the net OPEB obligations for fiscal years 2010 through 2013 were as follows (dollar amounts in
thousands):

Percentage of

Annual
Annual OPEB Cost Net OPEB
Fiscal Year Ended OPEB Cost Contributed Obligation
December 31, 2013 3 182 0.00% $ . 1130
December 31, 2012 168 0.00% 948
Decerber 31, 2011 562 0.00% 780

_In April 2008, the Authority established and funded an irrevocable trust in the amount of $2,000,000

to pay for the employee postemployment medical benefits. At December 31, 2013 and 2012, the fair
value of this trust fund was $1,786,017 and $1,851,610, respectively. As of December 31, 2013 and
2012, the actuarial liability for benefits was $2,916,017 and $2,799,610, respectively, which, due to
the establishment of the trust, is now approximately 61% funded. The difference of 39% is reported
as a ljability on the Authority’s books.

(15



NOTE 5

NOTE 6

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION (CONTINUED)

The most recent actuarial valuation date is January 1, 2011, Actuarial valnations involve estimates of

the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events in the future. Amounts

determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the

employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new

estimates are made about the future. The required schedule of funding progress presented as required

supplementary information provides multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial

value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for -
benefits.

Projections -of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the plan understood by the employer and
plan members) and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of
sharing benefit costs between the Authority and the plan members to that point. Actuarial calculations
reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are designed to reduce
shorf-term volatility in actuarial Habilities and the actuarial value of assets.

For the January 1, 2011 actuarial valuation, the Authority continued to use the actuarial assumptions
of a 4% discount rate and an annual healthcare trend rate of 9% grading down to an ultimate rate of
5% in 2021.

At December 31, 2013, the-Plan had 17 participants of which 12 were active employees and 5 were
retirees. OF the Plan participants, 5 retirees and 0 active employees were eligible to receive benefits.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Authority bas an operating lease commitment for its offices at an annual rental of approximately
$218,212 through December 31, 2016.

The Authority, in the normal course of business, is involved in various legal matters. Under the terms
of the agreements between the Authority and the public and private institutions of higher education,
and costs associated with litigation are the obligation of the institution involved. It is the opinion of
the Authority after consultation. with legal counsel that its financial position will not be adversely
affected by the ultimate outcome of any existing legal proceedings. '

(16}



NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2013

NOTE7 NET POSITION

The Authority’s net position represents the excess of assets over liabilities and is categorized as
follows:

e Invested in Capital Assets are the amounts expended by the Authority for the acquisition of
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation. ‘

o Unrestricted is the remaining net position, which can be further categorized as designated or
undesignated. The designated position is not governed by statute or contract but is committed
for specific purposes pursuant to Authority policy and/or directives. The designated position
includes funds and assets committed to working capital.

NOTE 8 CHANGES IN NET POSITION

The changes in net position are as follows:

Invest.ed in
Capital Assets Unrestricted Total
Net Position at December 31, 2011 $ 110,140 $ 3485017 % 3,595,157
Net Position Change - 1,060,153 1,060,153
Capital Asset Additions : 6,488 (6,488) -
Depreciation (35,138) 35,138 -
Net Position at December 31,2012 - 81,490 4,573,820 4,655,310
Net Position Change . . 945,842 . 945,842
Capital Asset Additions 13,157 (13,157) -
" Depreciation (27,091) 27,091 -

Net Position at December 31, 2013 3 67,556 $ 5,533,596 $ 5,601,152

NOTE9 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, and destruction of assets;
errors and omission; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Authority maintains
commercial insurance coverage covering each of those risks of loss. Management believes such
coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the Authority. Settled claims
have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the last three years

(17)
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Schedule 1
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR THE OPEB PLAN
(in thousands)
Actuarial
Accrued UAALasa
Actuarial Liability : Percentage
Actuarial Value of (AAL)- Unfunded Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Level Dollar AAL(UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date () () (b-a) (a/b) (©) (b-a)/(c)
January 1,2011 $ 1966 § 259 $ 625 76% % L1 . 56%
January 1, 2008 ‘ - 1,826 1,826 - 1,415 125%
January 1, 2006 - 2,690 2,080 - 1,269 165%

Note: In April 2008, the Authority established and funded an irrevocable trust in. the amount of $2 million.
At December 31, 2013, the fair value of this trust was $1,786,45 0.

) Schedule 2
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE OPEB PLAN
(in thousands)

Year Ended _ Annual OPEB Percentage of Annual Net OPEB
December 31, Cost (Benefit) OPEB Cost Contributed Qbligation

2013 - 1817 0.00% 1,129.8
2012 168.1 0.00% 948.1
2011 562.0 0.00% ' 780.0
2010 ' 1200 0.00% - 2180
2009 95.0 0.00% 938.0
2008 : (221.0) ' N/A 3.0

(19)
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
BALANCE SHEETS -~ TRUSTEE HELD ¥ TGNDS
DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012
2013 2012
ASSETS

Cash 60,455 $ -
Investments, Principally USS. Govemﬁmnt Obligations 313,108,095 415,449,237
Accrued @terest Receivable - 22,3;44
Due from Colleges and Universities 4753927 3,144,000
Loans and Leases Receivable 5,006,327,283 5,391,380,667

Total Assets 5,324,249,760 $ 5,309,996,248

LIABHITIES

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 3408196 3 12,355,881
Accrued Interest Payable 100,943,695 105,986,445
Bonds and Notes Payaﬁe 5,056,049,783 5,436,335,251 ‘
Funds Held inn Trust 163,848,086 255,318,671

Total Liabilities 5,324,249,760 $  5,809,996,248

See accompanying Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements.
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN TRUSTEE BELD FUNDS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

Funds Held in Trust - Beginning of Year

Additions:
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds and Issuance of Notes:
Par Amount
Bond Prepium, Net
Annual Loan and Rental Requirements
College and University Contributions (Returned)
Investment Income '
1.8, Government Debt Service Subsidies
Change in Investment Valuation Reserve
Total Additions

Deductions:
Debt Service:
Interest
Principal
Project Costs
Issuance Costs
Administrative Fees _
‘Pransfers to Escrow Accounts for Defeasance of Refunded Issues
Total Deductions

Decrease in Funds Held in Trust

Funds Held in Trust - BEnd of Year

See accompanying Notes to Supplemental Financial Statements.
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2013 2012
$ 255318671 $ 416,054,612
413,425,637 240,620,000
2,783,148 15,240,523
687,096,023 426,198,785
1,240,806 (360,257)
711,886 3,464,656
1,725,766 1,874,814
(69.415) (115,562)
1,106,913,851 686,922,959
235,850,590 248,101,741
451,164,784 176,374,142
445,408,858 260,601,859
1,411,318 1,835,137
3,162,729 3,385,740
61,386,157 157,360,281
1,198,384,436 847,658,900
(91,470,585) (160,735,941)
$ 163,848,086 $ . 255318671




NOTE 1

NOTE 2

NOTE 3

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012

INTRODUCTION

Under the terms of the Authority’s enabling legislation, the Authority has the power to issue bonds
and notes on behalf of public and private institutions of higher education in the State of New Jersey.
The obligations issued by the Authority are conduit debt and are not guaranteed by, nor do they
constitute a debt or obligation of, the State of New Jersey.

Because the bonds and notes issued by the Authority are nonrecourse conduit debt obligations of the
Authority, the Authority has, in effect, none of the risks and rewards of the related financings. The
supplemental financial statements presented herein include information pertaining to funds held by
Trustees of the various bond and note issnances of the Authority.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Trustee Held Funds are presented as fiduciary funds and held by outside trustees and as such are
not intended to present the financial position or results of operations. The Trustee Held Funds utilize
the accrual basis of accounting.

FUNDS HELD IN TRUST

Funds held in trust include amounts in the construction, debt service and debt service reserve funds
and the renewal and replacement accounts established for each bond issue. Balances maintained in the
construction funds represent unexpended proceeds allocated for specific projects; the debt service
fund, debt service reserve fund, and renewal and replacement account balances represent amounts
reserved for payment of debt service and the renewal and replacement of major components of
projects as required by the provisions of the various series resolutions. The following is a schedule of
the aggregate funds held in frust as of December 31, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Construction Funds $ 113,757,331 $ 180,265,008
Debt Service Funds 4,861,001 2,572,503
Debt Service Reserve Funds 38,979,089 65,808,789
Renewal and Replacement Accounts © 6,250,665 6,072371
Total Funds Held i Trust § 163,848,086 $ 255318671
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NOTE 4

NOTES

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Tnvestments permitted in the Trustee Held Funds are authorized by the respective Bond Resolutions.
All funds held by the trustees may be invested in obligations of, or guaranteed by, the United States
Government. In addition, certain funds may be invested in: obligations of agencies of the U.S.
government; obligations of, or guaranteed by, the State of New Jersey; collateralized certificates of
deposit and repurchase agreements; commercial paper; and other securities which shall be authorized
for the investment of funds in the custody of the Treasurer of the State of New Jersey.

Investments held by trustees are carried at fair value and comprise the following:

2013 : 2012
Investments;
Colateralized Investment Agreements $ 5689000  § 2,475,000
Variable Rate Demand Obligations 5,900,000 5,900,000
U.S. Treasury and Agency Obligations* ) 301,519,095 C 407,074,237
Total Investments $ 313,108,095 $ 415449237

* Includes $177.788,872 and $144,204,847 of investments in pooled U.S. Treésury funds at
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, which are uncategorized.

LOANS AND LEASES RECEXVABLE

Sinee its inception, the Authority has issued obligations of $13,445,722,299 and $13,276,995,299 as

of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively, for the benefit of various public and private institutions
of higher education. The obligations are secured by foans, mortgages, leases and other agreements,
the terms of which generally correspond to the amortization of the related bond issues.

The loans and mortgages are secured by revenues produced by the facilities and by other legally
available funds of the institutions. For projects under lease agreements, the Authority is the owner of .
those projects. It is the intention of the Authority to transfer title in the projects at the expiration of the
leases. Accordingly, the leases are being accounted for as financing transactions.
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL FINAN CIAL INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 5 - LOANS AND LEASES RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Loans and leases receivable comprise the following:

2013 2012
Toans: ‘
Tnstitute for Advanced Stady : $ 48,975,000 $ 52,915,000
New Jersey Institute of Technology 71,415,000 71,415,000
Princeton Theological Seminary 69,857,500 ' 98,750,000
Princeton University _ 1,740,922,500 1,796,772,500
Mortgages:
Bloomfleld College 20,165,637 -
Caldwell College : 19,775,732 17,605,000
Centenary College 35,066,874 36,184,066
College of Saint Elizabeth : -21,090,000 21,790,600
Drew University : 69,160,060 68,458,571
Fairleigh Dickinson University ' 86,960,781 90,877,249
Felician College - 7,115,000 7,775,000
Georgian Court University 26,092,351 27,046,916
Institute for Defense Analyses 12,160,000 - 12,680,000
New Jersey Institute of Technology 2,947,500 4,012,500
Rider University ) 46,665,000 50,247,500
Saint Petexr's College 36,974,259 39211471
Seton Hall University ‘ 131,216,000 104,547,917
Stevens Institute of Technology ' T2A65,000 75,102,500
University of Medicine and Dentistry of New Jersey 252,045,000
Leases:
Kean University 331,174,664 344,452,739
Montelair State University : 323,820,000 333,135,000
New Jersey City University ' 125,895,000 129,355,000
Passaic County Community College 13,265,000 - 13,512,500
Ramapo College of New Jersey ) 255,540,000 263,650,000
Rowan University (formerly Glassboro State College) 283,195,000 293,787,500
Thomas Edison State College 9,195,425 9,970,238
The CoBege of New Jersey ' ' 373,382,500 353,810,000
The Richard Stockton College of New Jersey 231,399,000 237,489,000
The William Paterson University of New Jersey 163,137,500 169,752,560
Higher Education Capital Tmprovement Fund ‘ 330,545,000 358,095,000
County College Capital Projects Fund 2,270,000 4,475,000
Dommitory Safety Trust Fund ' ] 17,605,000 23,240,000
Library Grant Program 26,885,000 29,220,000
Total . $ 5006327283 $  5,391,380,667
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)

NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 6 BONDS, NOTES AND LEASES PAYABLE

Bonds, notes and leases payable comprise the following: -

Net
QOriginal Final Effective Amount Outstanding
Issue Maturity Interest December 31,
Issue Axount Date Rate 2013 2012

Bonds Payable
Bloomfield College :

2013 Series A $ 32,267,000 5/13/2043 Variable 20,165,637 % -
Caldwell College:

2006 Series F 23,400,000 12032 Variable - 17,605,000

2013 Series E 20,000,000 5/31/2038 3.625% 19,775,732 -
Centenary College: _

2003 Series A. 14,775,000 10/1/2033 Variable 8,850,000 9,445,000

2006 Series J 9,154,113 11/1/2036 Vaziable 8,501,612 8,649,113

2007 Series B 4,784,617 11/1/2036 Variable 4,335,262 4,424,953

2010 Serdes D 13,974,000 1/1/2041 Variable 13,340,000 13,665,000
Drew University:

2003 Series C 20,855,000 . W1/2021 3.888% 14,975,000 14,975,000

2007 Series D 29,135,000 712037 4.601% 26,785,000 26,880,000

2008 Series B 10,765,000 1/2017 4.234% 6,270,000 7,635,000

2008 Series I 40,000,000 6/25/2018 Varjable 13,958,682 11,938,282

2010 Series C 15,580,000 6/1/2024 Variable 8,598,878 7,760,289
Donmitory Safety Trust Fund: .

Serjes 2001 A 67,970,000 - 3/1/2016 4.239% 14,565,000 19,420,000

Series 2001 B - Taxable 5,800,000 3/1/2016 6.117% 1,235,000 1,650,000

Series 2003 A 5,440,000 3/1/2018 3.752% 1,805,000 2,170,000
Fairleigh Dickinson University:

2002 Series I 63,650,000 12032 6.114% 52,610,000 54,100,000

2004 Series C 35,285,000 712023 5.534% 23,790,000 25,555,000

2006 Sexies G 14,505,000 711/2028 4.954% 11,730,000 12,250,000

2006 Series H 2,147,554 TIH2027 4.954% 818,281 859,749

Felician College:

2006 Sexies 1 11,445,000 11/1/2022 47749% 7,170,000 7,830,000
Georgian Court University:

1998 Series, Project B 6,455,000 71172015 4.198% 450,000 655,000
2003 Series, Project C 15,215,000 7/1/2033 5.991% - 315,000

2007 Series D 26,980,000 2037 5.022% 25,385,000 25,735,000

2007 Series H 1,050,000 10/1/2022 5.296% 714,851 776916
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 6 BONDS, NOTES AND LEASES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Net
Onigireal Final Fffective Amount Quistanding
Issue Maturity Interest December 31,
Issue Amount Date Rate 2013 . 2012
Higher Education Capital
Tmprovement Fund:
Series 2002 A 194,550,000 9/1/2022 4.599% 3,140,000 3,890,000
Seres 2004 A 76,725,000 9/1/2024 4352% 30,355,000 33,875,000
Series 2005 A 169,790,000 912019 4.121% 145,355,000 168,030,000
Series 2006 A . 155,460,000 971/2024 4.421% 151,695,000 - 152,300,000
Institute for Advanced Study: ‘
2001 Sexies A 11,000,000 711/2031 5.101% - ' 1,940,000
2006 Series B 29,600,000 711/2031 3.990% 26,500,000 27,500,000
2006 Series C 20,000,000 7712036 Variable 17,500,000 18,000,000
2008 Series C 11,255,000 7172021 3.619% 4,975,060 . 5,475,000
Institute for Defense Analysis: :
2000 Sexies D 16,695,000 10/1/2030 Variable 12,160,000 12,680,000
Kean University: . '
Series 1998 B 25,995,000 2027 4.872% 4,865,000 5,343,000
Series 2003 D 73,000,000 7/1/2033 43811% 8,080,000 . 9,885,000
Series 2005 B 101,915,000 712037 4.681% 18,630,000 20,945,000
Series 2007 D 117,795,000 7/1/2039 4.553% 109,590,060 112,055,000
Series 2009 A. . 179,380,000 9/1/2036 6.404% 178,735,000 179,380,000
Librazy Grant Program:
“Series 2002 A 45,000,000 9/1/2022 4.560% 26,885,000 29,220,000
Montclair State University:
Series 2002 F 78,500,000 W1/2032 4.489% 17,800,000 20,125,000
Seres 2003 E . 23,425,000 /142033 4.445% 17,275,000 18,100,000
Series 2003 L 94,540,600 12034 4.541% 23,430,000 25,645,000
. Series 2006 A 98,090,000 7112036 4.816% 86,680,000 88,705,000
Series 2006 ¥ 154,110,000 /2034 4300% 152,860,000 . 153,595,000
- Series 2007 A 6,150,000 12021 4.022% 4,600,000 5,050,000
Series 2008 J 27,545,000 7/1/2038 5.100% 25,925,000 26,480,000
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012

NOTE 6 BONDS, NOTES AND LEASES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Criginal Final Effective Amount Outstanding

Issue Maturity Interest December 31,
) Issue Amount Date Rate ‘ 2013 2012
New Jersey City University:
Serfes 2002 A ‘ _ 15,115,000 12032 4.945% 800,000 1,175,000
Series 2003 B 2,300,000 712018 5.65%% 1,200,000 - 1,400,000
Series 2007 F 17,910,000 7112032 4.337% 16,680,600 16,935,000
Series 2008 E 68,445,000 2035 4.763% 61,020,000 62,625,600
Series 2008 F. 6,175,000 712036 7.039% 6,175,000 6,175,000
Series 2010 F , 24,065,000 72028 3.313% 23,820,000 24,065,000
Series 2010 G 18,310,000 712040 4.062%** 18,310,000 18,310,000
New Jersey Institute of Technology: .
Series 2001 H - Taxable 12,570,000 7/1/2016 6.259% 3,495,000 4,530,000
Series 2010 H 50,965,000 2031 4.280% 50,965,000 50,965,000
Series 20101 ‘ 20,450,600 TY2040  4304%*F 20,450,000 20,450,000
Passaic County Commuaity College:
Series 2010C 13,635,000 712041 5.355% 13,350,000 13,635,000
Princeten Theological Seminary:
2002 Series G 26,125,000 7172032 4.824% - 25,250,000
2009 Series B _ 14,435,000 12/1/2032 2.878% 10,820,000 11,760,000
2010 Series A 68,785,000 T1/2036 3.745% 60,920,000 63,615,000
Priniceton University:
2003 Series D 114,495,000 7/1/2019 3.727% 60,995,000 66,865,000
2003 Series E 112,510,000 7/1/2028 3.944% - 51,040,000
2004 Series D 175,000,000 12029 4.497% 18,015,000 23,410,000
2005 Series A 139,590,000 7172030 4.405% 125,135,000 129,960,000
2005 Series B 114,645,000 12035 4.236% 71,450,000 73,970,000
2006 Series D 74,290,000 71172031 4.391% 62,440,000 T 64,665,000
2006 Series B . 93,285,000 2027 4.504% 91,970,000 92,110,000
2007 Series E 325,000,000 /2037 4.534% 288,960,000 295,525,000
2007 Series F 67,620,000 12030 4.392% 67.020,000 67,145,000
2008 Series J ' ’ 250,000,000 U238 4391% . 231,265,000 236,230,000
2008 Series K 208,805,000 712023 4.356% 148,770,000 161,755,000
2010 Serics B 250,000,000 74172040 4.034% 240,815,000 245,475,000
2011 Series B 250,000,000 7/1/2041 4.087% 245,776,000 250,000,000
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

' DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 6 BONDS, NOTES AND LEASES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Orginal Final Fffective Amount Outstanding
Issue Maturity Tnterest December 31,
. Issue Amount Date Rate 2013 2012 .
Ramapo Coliege of New Jersey:
Series 2003 F : 1,820,000 7742013 3.257% - 255,000
Series 2003 G 9,300,000 7/1/2013 3.110% - 800,000
Series 2003 H 18,930,000 Y2029 4.346% 16,620,000 16,705,000
Series 2004 E 53,980,000 7/1/2034 4.630% 11,645,000 12,395,000
Series 2006 D ‘ 49,085,000 H1/2036 4.521% 32,725,000 - 33,845,000
Series 20061 106,820,000 112036 4.417% 105,130,000 105,490,000
Series 2011 A . 19,090,000 71/2621 3.325% 15,720,000 17,470,000
Series 2012 B - 80,670,000 711/2042 3.689% 78,430,000 $0,670,000
Rider University:
2012 Series A 52,020,000 2037 3.741% 48,475,000 52,020,600
" Rowan University (formerly
Classboro State College): . :
Series 1983 D ' 3,500,000 7/112013 3.000% - 180,000
Series 2003 1 64,910,000 . 7/1/2030 4.714% - 1,955,000
Series 2004 C 61,275,000 2034 . 4.697% 2,320,000 4,525,000
Series 2005 D : 51,840,000 T30 4532% 45,700,000 47,525,000
Seres 2006 G 69,405,000 71172031 4.362% 62,025,000 63,585,000
Series 2007 B 121,355,000 7142034 4.266% 115,630,000 117,340,000
Series 2008 B 35,205,000 71172027 4.839% 35,205,000 35,205,000
Series 2011 C 30,045,000 025 3.705% 26,410,000 28,410,000
Saint Peter's University (formerly
Saint Peter's College): . :
2007 Series G 36,053,465 2027 4.217% 34,437,959 36,053,466
2007 Series § 3,848,462 17172013 3.925% _ - 125,705
2008 Sexes H _ 5,000,000 711/2018 3.925% 2,536,300 3,032,300
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012

NOTE 6 BONDS, NOTES AND LEASES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

Original Final Effective Amount Qutstanding
Issue . Maturity Interest December 31,
Issue Amount Date Rate 2013 2012
Seton Hall University:
2008 Series D ‘ 49,760,000 12037 Variable 45,955,000 46,960,000
2008 Series B 24,340,000 7N/2037 6.127% 23,025,000 23,485,000
2009 Series C 7,955,000 9/1/2036 6.404% - 7,675,000
2011 Series A : 35,470,000 7/1/2026 - 2.997% 23,725,000 29,695,000
2013 Series D 41,916,000 7/1/2043 2.707% 41,910,000 -
Stevens Institute of Technology:
1998 Series I 17,000,000 7/1/2028 5.108% 4,980,000 5,330,000
2007 Series A 71,060,000 T/2034 . 4.971% 68,835,000 71,060,000
The College of New Jersey:
Series 2008 D ‘ 287,790,000 7/1/2035 5.086% 283,790,000 284,790,000
Series 2010 A 3,410,000 712015 2.411% 1,755,000 3,348,000
Series 2010B 41,080,600 71112040 4.7748%** 41,090,000 40,337,000
Series 2012 A 26,253,000 71172019 1.637% 26,255,600 26,255,000
Series 2013 A 24,950,000 7/1/2043 4.561% 24,950,000 .-
The College of Saint Elizabeth:
2008 Series F 24,090,000 71172036 Variable ' 21,090,600 21,790,000
The Richard Stockton College of
New Jersey: -
Serjes 1998 A 3,294,000 U206 3.000% 394,000 < 544,000
Series 2005 F 28,180,000 71172028 4.458% 20,840,000 21,845,000
Series 2006 F 50,365,000 /2036 4.460% 46,105,000 47,235,000
Sexies 20076 40,250,000 712037 4.500% 36,565,000 37,450,000
Series 2008 A. 136,910,000 712038 5.309% 130,610,000 - 133,390,000
Thonas Edison State College: ‘ '
* Series 2011 D 8,000,000 10/1/2031 3.516% 7,578,947 8,000,000
University of Medicine and
Dentistry of New Jersey:
Series 20098 258,075,000 12/1/2032 T4T2% - 252,045,000
The William Paterson University
of New Jersey:
Series 2004 A 30,035,000 71172028 4.131% 945,000 2,300,000
Serfes 2005 E 42,295,000 712030 4.546% 34,870,000 37,580,000
Senes 2008 C $8,670,000 7112038 4.724% 80,245,000 82,235,000
Serjes 2012C 33,815,000 711/2042 2.955% 33,140,000 33,815,000
Series 20121 21,860,000 711/2028 2.489% 17,085,000 17,280,000
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)

NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

BONDS, NOTES AND LEASES PAYABLE {(CONTINUED)

Original Final Effective Amount Outstanding
Issue Matarity Interest December 31,
Issue Amount Date Rate 2013 2012
Notes Payable '
Princeton University: -
Varipus Commercial Paper 120,000,000 * N/A Variable 95,700,000 46,100,000

Leases Payable
Kean University 916,666 6/1/2014 4.064% - 50,239
Kean University 10,000,000 2020 3.140% 6,750,000 7,750,000
Kean University 15,000,000 2152021 2.820% 7,612,163 12,375,000
Thomas Edison State College 2,700,000 O 28/2022 Variable 663,147 764,235
Thomas Fdison State College 700,000 9/14/2015 2.370% 254,480 395,232
Thomas Fdison State College 948,000 7/1/2019 2.4271% 698,852 810,772
Treasurer, State of New Jersey, ' .

Series 1999A 19,295,000 9/1/2014 4.7705% 430,000 840,000
Essex County, Series 1999 C 4,570,000 o/1/2014 5.177% 403,000 800,000
Hudson County, Series 1999 D 7,750,000 9/1/2014 5.177% 685,000 1,360,000
Middlesex County, Series 1999 E 4,370,000 9/1/2014 5.053% 395,000° 770,000
Passaic County, Series 1999 F 2,015,000 9/1/2014 5.125% 175,000 356,000
Hudson County Community College

(Chapter 78), Series 1999 G 2,035,000 9/1/2014 S.177% 180,000 355,000

*  Maximum authorized amount.

**  PBuild Ameriea Bond
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NOTE 6

NOTE 7

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
' DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

BONDS, NOTES AND LEASES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

The minimum aggregate principal maturities for each of the following five year periods are as
follows:

2014-2018 ‘ $  1,154,516,489
2019 - 2023 1,198,165,801
2004 - 2028 1,007,784,620
2029 - 2033 922,392,405
2034 - 2038 642,400,468
. 2039 - Thereafter : 130,790,000 .
Total $  5,056,049,783
REFUNDED BOND ISSUES

When conditions have warranted, the Authority has sold various issues of bonds to provide for the
refunding of previously issued obligations.

The proceeds received from the sales of the bond issues were used to refund currently the outstanding
bond issues or to deposit in an irrevocable escrow fund held by the Escrow Agent, an amount which,
when combined with interest earnings thereon, is at least equal to the sum_of the outstanding principal
amount of the bonds, the interest to accrue thereon to and including the first optional redemption date
thereof, and the premium required to redeem the bonds outstanding on such daté. Accordingly, the
trust account assets and the liability for defeased bonds are not included in the Authority’s financial
statements. :

Certain transactions defeased the outstanding bond issues with a resultant reduction in annual debt:

service during the term of the issues. The debt service savings, together with any accounting gain or
loss that will be deferred, accrue to the respective institutions. ‘
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

" (A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
~ DECEMBER 31,2013 AND 2012 '

NOTE7 REFUNDED BOND ISSUES (CONTINUED)

Refunded bonds outstanding at December 31, 2013 comprise the following:

Principal
Amount Refunded Issues " Refunding Issues
OCutstanding Principal Pebt COriginal
Decermber 31, Amount Cali Service Date of Amount
Issue 2013 Refanded Date Savings Issuance Issue : of Issue
Princeton University
20603 Series E - 25,000,000  7/12013 4043735 471272005 2005 Series A 139,590,000
2004 Sextes D - 31,470,000 31,470,000 7172014
Princeton University
2003 Series B - 5,950,000 7172013 2,755,545  8/10/2006 2006 Series E- 45,500,000
2004 Series D 49 045,000 49,045,000 712014
2005 Series B 7,820,600 7,820,000 77142015
Rowan University
Series 2003 1 - 17,385,000 7/1/2013 738,003  11/16/2006  Serfes 2006 G 69,405,000
Higher Edueation Capital
Improvement Fund
Series 2004 A 22,760,000 22,760,000 9/1/2014 4438363 10/26/2006  Series 2006 A 155,460,000
Ramapo Collepe of New Jersey
Series 2004 B 40,300,000 40,300,000 72014 3,510,943 11/28/2005  Series 20051 106,820,060
Series 2006 D 11,145,060 11,145,000 7/1/2016
Montchair State Univexsity
Series 2002 F 43,775,000 56,125,000 7172015 6,194,157  12/14/2006  Series 2006 154,110,000
Series 2003 L 55,500,000 64,200,000 712014 N
Kean University
Sertes 2003 D - 60,395,000 712013 14,985,307  4/13/2007 Series 2007 E 156,240,000
Series 2005 B 71,035,000 77,530,000 FILi2016
Stevens Institute of Technology
1998 Series I 4,265,000 6,050,000 No Calt N/a* 82007 2007 Series A 71,060,000
2002 Series C - 49,355,000  7/1/2013
2004 Series B 11,240,000 12,825,600 712014
Princeton Usniversity
2003 Series. B ~ 4,270,000 TER2013 2,361,004 /1912007 2007 Series F 67,620,000
2004 Series D . 36,805,000 36,805,000 7712014
2005 Series A 2,095,000 2,095,600 7112015
2005 Series B 17,625,000 17,625,000  W1R015
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY)
NOTES TO SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31, 2013 AND 2012

NOTE 7 REFUNDED BOND ISSUES (CONTINUED)

Principal
Amount Refunded Issues Refunding Issues
Outstanding Principal Debt Original
December 31, Amount Calt Service Date of Amount
Issue . 2013 Refunded Date Savings Issnance Issue of Issue
Rowan University
Series 2003 I o - 35,615,000 142013 4,465,765 4/5£3007 Series 2007 B 121,355,000
Series 2004 C ‘ 47,505 000 51,595,000 712014
Georgian Court University
2003 Series, Project C - 13,585,000 712013 1,034,788 719/2007 2007 Series D 26,980,000
Drew University ‘ .
2003 Series C - 2,390,000 7112013 N/a¥ 11/15/201G 2010 Series C 15,580,000
2007 Series D - 1,255,000 2013
Rider University ‘ ‘
2004 Series A 12,435,000 13,075,000 71172014 2,797,196 4412012 2012 Series A 52,020,000
New Jersey Institute of Technology
Serjes 2004 B 56,095,000 59,725,000 /172014 N/A**
The William Paterson
University of New Jersey i :
Series 2004 A 18,240,000 18,240,000 712014 1,784,731 10/30/2012  Serfes 20121 17,290,000
University of Medicine &
Dentistry of New Jersey :
Series 2009 B 105,786,840 109,794,495  6/1/2019 N/A** Rutgers TE-
101,254,749 105,080,709 6/1/2019 7N Rutgers Taxable
© 34,071,872 33,362,659 6172019 NIAFY Rowan
1,731,539 2341867 612019 NA** Univ Hospitat

*  ebt Restructuring
** Mot NJEFA. Refunding Bonds
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND
ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON
AN AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Management and Members of
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
Princeton, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business type activities of the
New Jersey Education Facilities Authority as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated March 18, 2014.

‘Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion
on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do mnot express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency 1s a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our covsideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies. Given these Jimitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified. '
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N An independent member of Nexia intemationat

INTERNATIONAL



Management and Members of
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

Compliance and Other Matters .

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the:
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the result of that testing, and not to provide-an opinion on the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for
any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania
March. 18, 2014

(36)



CliftonLarsonalien LLP
wwav.clifionlarsonalien.com

CliftonLarsonAllen

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON
BOND RESOLUTION COMPLIANCE

Members
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the
accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the New Jersey Educational Facilities
Authority (the Authority), which comprise the statement of net position as of December 31, 2013, and the related
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the year then ended, and have
issued our report thereon dated March 18, 2014.

Pursuant to the General Revenue Bond Resolution adopted October 10, 1968 and amended January 12, 1971, the
General Higher Educational Facilities Revenue Bond Resolution adopted October 10, 1968 and amended April
13, 1971, applicable Series Resolutions and applicable Trust Tndentures during the period under audit, the -

Authority had outstanding the authorized bonds and obligations listed in Exhibit A of this report as of December
31, 2013. ‘

In conpection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the New Jersey
Fducational Facilities Authority failed to comply with the terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of the
Resolutions and Indentures referred to above, insofar as they relate to accounting matters including the
maintenance of Debt Service Reserve Funds and the Renewal and Replacement Accounts and insurance coverage.
However, our audit was not directed primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such non-compliance.
Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may bave come to our attention regarding
the Authority’s noncompliance with. the above-referenced terms, covenants, provisions, or conditions of the
aforementioned General Resolutions, applicable Series Resolutions and applicable Trust Indentures, insofar as
they relate to accounting matters. ‘ :

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Members and management of the New Jersey
Educational Facilities Authority and the Trustees under the Resolutions and Indentures and is not intended to be,
and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

CliftonLarsonAlien LLP |

Plyniouth Meeting, Pennsylvania
March 18, 2014

(1)
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

OUTSTANDING BONDS AND OBLIGATIONS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Institation

Issue

Bloomfield College
Caldwell College

Centenary College

Drew University

Essex County

Faileigh Dickinson University

Felician College

Georgian Court University

Hudson County
Hudson County Community College

Institute for Advanced Study

)

2013 Series A

2013 Series E

2003 Series A
2006 Series J

2007 Series B -

2010 Series D

2003 Series C
2007 Sertes D
2008 Series B
2008 Series 1

2010 Series C -

Series 1999 C

2002 Series D

2004 Series C
2006 Series G
2006 Series H

2006 Series 1

1998 Series, Project B

2007 Series D
2007 Series H

Series 1999 D
Series 1999 G

2006 Series B

2006 Series C .

2008 Series C

Exhibit A



NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
OUTSTANDING BONDS AND OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2013

Institution

Issue

Institute for Defense Analyses

Kean University

Middlesex County

Montclair State University

New Jersey City University

New Jersey Institute of Technology

Passaic County

Passaic County Community College

(3)

2000 Series D

Series 1998 B
Series 2003 D
Series 2005 B
Series 2007 D
Series 2009 A

2010 Tax-Exempt Lease
2011 Tax-Exempt Lease

Series 1999 E

Series 2002 F
Series 2003 E
Series 2003 L
Series 2006 A
Series 2006 §
Series 2007 A
Series 2008 J

Series 2002 A
Series 2003 B
Series 2007 F
Series 2008 E
Series 2008 F
Series 2010 F
Series 2010 G

Series 2001 H - Taxable

Series 2010 H
Series 2010 1

Series 1999 F

Series 2010 C

Exhibit A



NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
OUTSTANDING BONDS AND OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Institution ‘ ' Issue

Princeton Theological Seminary | - 2009 Series B
~ 2010 Series A

Princeton University . - Various Commercial Paper
- 2003 Series D
e 2004 Series D
- 2005 Series A
- 2005 Series B
- 2006 Series D
-~ 2006 Series E
- 2007 Series E
- 2007 Series F
-- 2008 Series J
-~ 2008 Series K.
— 2010 Series B
" - 2011 Series B

Ramapo College of New Jersey --  Series 2003 H
-~ Series 2004 E
-~ Series 2006 D
- Series 2006 1
—  Series 2011 A
- - Serjes 2012 B

" Rider University - 2012 Series A

Rowan University -~ Series 2004 C
-~ Series 2005 D
- Series 2006 G
- Series 2007 B
-~ Series 2008 B
—  Series 2011 C

Saint Peter's College - 2007 Series G
'~ - 2008 Series H

®

Exhibit A



NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
OUTSTANDING BONDS AND OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2013

Institution

Issue

Seton Hall University

~ Stevens Institute of Technology

The College of New Jersey

The College of Saint Elizabeth

The Richard Stockton Col!ege of New Jersey

Thomas Edison State College

William Paterson University of New Jersey

)

2008 Series D
2008 Series E
2011 Series A
2013 Series D

1998 Series I
2007 Series A

Serizs 2008 D

* Series 2010 A.

Series 2010 B
Series 2012 A
Series 2013 A

2008 Series F

Series 1988 A
Series 2005 F
Series 2006 F
Series 2007 G
Series 2008 A

2007 Tax-Exempt Lease
2010 Tax-Exempt Lease
2011 Tax-Exempt Lease

2011 Series D

Series 2004 A
Series 2005 E
Series 2008 C
Series 2012 C
Series 2012 D

Exhibit A



Exhibit A

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACEITIE_S AUTHORITY
OUTSTANDING BONDS AND OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Ins titation

Issue

Treasurer, State of New Jersey

(6}

Series 1999 A, County College
Capital Project Fund

Series 2002 A, Higher Education
Capital Improvement Fund

Series 2004 A, Higher Education
Capital Improvement Fund

Series 2005 A, Higher Education
Capital Improvement Fund

 Series 2006 A, Higher Education

Capital Improvement Fund
Series 2001 A,
Dormitory Safety Trust Fund

~ Series 2001 B, Taxable,

Dormitory Safety Trust Fund
Series 2003 A,

Dormitory Safety Trust Fund
Series 2002 A,

Library Grant Program
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CliftonLarsonAilen LLP
wwew.cliftoniarsonalien.com

CliftonLarsonAllen

Management and Members of
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
Princeton, New Jersey

We have audited the financial statements of the businéss-type activities of the New Jersey Educational
Facilities Authority for the year ended December 31, 2013, and have issued our report thereon March 18,
2013. We have previously communicated to you information about our responsibilities under auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards, as well as
certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. Professional standards also require
that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit.

Significant audit findings
Qualitative aspects of accounting practices

Accounting policies ‘ )

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority are described in Note 1 fo the
financial statements. ‘

No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during
2013. -

We noted no transactions entered into by the entity during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative
guidance or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the
proper period.

Accounting estimates :

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based
on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future
evenis, Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial
statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those
expected. The most sensitive estimate(s) affecting the financial statements were:

¢ Management’s estimate of useful lives of capital assets
e  Other post-employment benefit (OPEB) liability

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to devélop these estimates in determining that they are
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Finoncial statement disclosures _

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

L

iy G 8 Anindependent member of Nexia lateraational
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Management and Members of
New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority
" Page 2

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit

We ‘encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit. :

Uncorrected misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than those
that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management did not
identify and we did not notify them of any uncorrected financial statement misstatements.

Corrected misstatements

Management did not identify and we did not notify them of any financial statement misstatements detected as
a result of audit procedures,

Disagreements with management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
. auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during our audit.

Management representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the attached management
representation letter dated March 18, 2013.

Management consultations with other independent accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of
an accounting principle to the entity’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ opinion
that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to
check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no
such consultations with other accountants.

Significant issues discussed with management prior lo engagement

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to engagement as the entity’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our engagement.

Other information in documents containing audited financial statements

With respect to the management’s discussion and analysis and the schedule of funding progress which is part
of the required supplementary information (RSI) accompanying the financial statements, we made certain
~ inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the RSI, including whether the RSI has been

measured and presented in accordance with prescribed guidelines, whether the methods of measurement and
preparation have been changed from the prior period, and whether there were any significant assumptions or
interpretations underlying the measurement of presentation of the RSL. We compared the RSI for consistency
with management’s responses to the foregoing inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
obtained during the audit of the basic financial statements. Because these limited procedures do not provide
sufficient evidence, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.



Management and Members of
New lersey Educational Faciiities Authority
Page 3

Qur auditors’ opinion, the audited financial statements, and the notes to financial statements should only be
used in their entirety, Inclusion of the audited financial statements in a document you prepare, such as an
annual report, should be done only with our prior approval and review of the document.

The supplemental financial information accompanying the financial statements, which is the responsibility of
management, was prepared for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial

statements. Such information was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial
statements, and, accordingly, we did not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

L O
This communication is intended solely for the information and use of the members and management of New

Jersey Educational Facilities Authority and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other
than these specified parties.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania
March 18,2014



EXHIBIT 11

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY
2014 BUDGET VARIANCE ANALYSIS
FOR TWO MONTHS ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2014

Executive Summary

The NJEFA concluded February with net operating income in the amount of $475,217,
based on revenues of $849,270 and expenses of $374,053. As a result, net operating income
is higher than budgeted by $152,246. This difference is a result of greater than budgeted
revenues in the amount of $38,372 and less than budgeted expenses in the amount of
$113,874.

Revenues

Revenues were above the budgeted amount through February due to greater than
anticipated Initial Fee income. ' :

Expenses

Operating expenditures for fhe first iwo months of the year were favorable as compared
to budget by $113,874. Most of the line items display positive deviations and are primarily the
result of staff vacancies and timing. .



NEW JElRSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY

ACTUAL vs. BUDGET REPORT
FEBRUARY 2014

Month Ended
February 28, 2014

‘Two Months Ended
Fehruary 28, 2014

o Actual Budget Variance Actual Budget Variance
Operatina Revenues ‘
Annual Administrative Fees -$249,200 $249,288 $ 2 $ 498580 § 408578 § 2
initial Fees - 11,820 (11,820) 350,000 311,820 38,180
Investment Income 87 250 {163) G690 500 190
$ 249,377 $261,358 § {(11,981) $ 849270 $ 810,898 § 38,372
Operating Expenses |
Salaries $79,155  $99,845 § 20,690 $ 198,582 $ 249,378 § 50,796
Employee Benefits 7 20,800 26,035 5,435 44 846 85713 10,867
Provision for Post Ret. Health Benefits 20,833 20,833 - 41,670 41,670 -
Office of The Governor 2,167 2,292 125 4,334 4,580 246
Office of The Attorney General 416 4,667 4,251 832 9,330 8,498
Sponsored Programs - 500 500 - 1,000 1,000
Telephone 1,223 1,667 444 1,223 3,330 2,107
Rent 19,283 19,282 (1) 38,685 38,564 (1)
Utilities 1,686 1,792 108 3,373 3,584 211
Postage 382 417 35 - 706 830 124
Office Supplies & Expenses 1,543 3,333 1,790 2,427 8,670 4,243
Travel & Official Receptions - 1,250 1,250 243 2,500 2,267
Staff Training & Tuition Reimbursement 159 1,760 1,591 159 3,500 3,341
Insurance 2,271 2,271 - 4,542 4,542 -
Annual Report & Newsletters - 2,500 2,500 - 5,000 5,000
Public Relations - 583 583 - 1,170 1,170
Professional Services 3,643 17,433 13,890 11,043 25,370 14,327
Dues & Subscriptions 2,183 3,277 1,094 10,764 11,860 1,086
Data Processing 3,500 3,750 250 3,500 7,500 4,000
Maintenance of Equipment 2,125 3,333 1,208 2,729 6,670 3,841
Depreciation 2,257 2,583 326 4,515 5,166 851
Contingency e - - - - -
163,326 219,393 56,087 374,053 487,927 113,874
Net Operating Income $ 86,0561 $ 41965 $ 44,086 $ 475217 $ 322971 § 152,246
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EXHIBIT m

RESOLUTION APPROVING A LETTER OF
INSTRUCTION AND ACTIONS IN CONNECTION WITH
THE DEFEASANCE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
AUTHORITY’S PRINCETON UNIVERSITY REVENUE
BONDS, 2004 SERIES D

ADOPTED MARCH 25, 2014

'WHEREAS, the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) was
created as a public body corporate and politic of the State of New Jersey pursuant to the New
Jersey Educational Facilities Authority Law (being Chapter 72A of Title 18A of the New Jersey
Statutes, as amended and supplemented), N.J.S.A. 18A:72A-] et seq.; and

WHEREAS, The Trustees of Princeton University (the “University”) has decided to
defense and redeem all or a portion of the outstanding New Jersey Educational Facilities
Authority Princeton University Revenue Bonds, 2004 Series D (the “2004 Series D Bonds”)
issued by the Authority on July 29, 2004 (the “Defeasance and Redemption”); and

WHEREAS, the Defeasance and Redemption shall be effected pursuant to the terms of a
Letter of Instruction (the “Letter of Instruction”), by and among the Authority, the University
and The Bank of New York Mellon, as trustee for the 2004 Series D Bonds; and

WHEREAS, Authority staff circulated a Request for Proposals for Verification Agent
Services (the “RFP”) to three firms, posted the RFP on the Authority’s website, and received the
following bids:

Causey Demgen & Moore P.C. $1,490
Mercadien, P.C. $2,000

WHEREAS, the Aufhority desires to authorize and approve the execution and delivery
of the Letter of Instruction and all acts necessary to effect the Defeasance and Redemption of the
2004 Series D Bonds.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE NEW
JERSEY EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY, AS FOLLOWS:

1. Appointment of Verification Agent. Causey, Demgen & Moore P.C. is hereby
appointed to act as verification agent in connection with the Defeasance and Redemption.

2. Approval of Letter of Instruction. The form of the Letter of Instruction
presented to the meeting at which this Resolution is adopted (a copy of which shall be filed with
the records of the Authority) is hereby approved. Any of the Chair, Vice-Chair, Executive
Director, Deputy Executive Director, Treasurer, Director of Project Management, Secretary or
any Assistant Secretary of the Authority, and/or any other person authorized by resolution of the
Authority, and any of such officers designated as “acting” or “interim” (each an “Authorized
Officer”) is hereby authorized and directed to execuie, acknowledge and deliver the Letter of
Instruction in substantially such form, with such changes therein (including, without limitation,
the date thereof), as the Authorized Officer executing the same may approve, such approval to be
conclusively evidenced by such Authorized Officer’s execution thereof.

ME1L 15450953v.1



3. Incidental Action. The Authorized Officers of the Authority are hereby -
authorized and directed to execute and deliver such other documents, certificates, directions and
notices, and to take such other action as may be necessary or appropriate in order (i) to effectuate
the execution and delivery of the Letter of Instruction, and (ii) to effect the Defeasance and
Redemption of the 2004 Series D Bonds. ‘

4. Prior Resolutions. All prior resolutions of the Authority or portions thereof
inconsistent herewith are hereby repealed. '

5. Y ffective Date. This Resolution shall take effect in accordance with the Act.

Ms. Ungar___moved that the foregoing resolution be adopted as introduced

and read, which motion was seconded by ___ Mr. Rodriguez_ and upon roll cail the following
members voted: '

AYE: Roger B. Jacobs
Ridgeley Hutchinson
Louis Rodriguez
Katherine Ungar
Andrew Sidamon-Eristoff (represented by Steven Petrecca)
Rochelle Hendricks (represented by Gregg Edwards)

NAY: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Joshua Hodes

The Chair thereupon declared said motion carried and said resolution adopted.

Princeton Defeasance — 3/25/14
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EXHIBIT 1V

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING DEFEASANCE OF AUTHORITY BONDS
ON DIRECTION OF BORROWER

WHEREAS, the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) was created as a
public body corporate and politic of the State of New Jersey pursuant to the New Jersey Educational
Facilities Authority Law (being Chapter 72A of Title 18A of the New Jersey Statutes, as amended and
supplemented), N.J.S.A. 18A:72A-1 et seq.; and '

 WHEREAS, the Authority has heretofore issued Revenue Bonds (the “Bonds”) for institutions of
higher education in New Jersey (the “Higher Education Institutions™) under and pursuant to various
resolutions and trust indentures; and

WHEREAS, such Bonds are subject to defeasance; and

WHEREAS, the proceeds of each such issue of Bonds has been loaned to a higher education
institution; and '

WHEREAS, the Authority intends to authorize the defeasance of all or any portion of each respective
issue of Bonds upon the direction of the higher education institution to whom the proceeds of such
issue have been loaned (the “Borrower™), all in accordance with the provisions of the resolutions and/
or trust indentures pursuant to which such Bonds were issued;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the New Jersey Educational Facilities
Authority , as follows:

Section 1. The Authority hereby authorizes the Executive Director and the Executive
Director's designees to enter into any escrow agreement, Jetter of instructions or other agreement for
defeasance of all or a portion of an issue of Bonds upon the direction of the Borrower upon the
satisfaction of the following conditions: (i) the delivery of a verification report satisfactory to the
Executive Director addressed to the Authority which indicates that the funds deposited into an
irrevocable escrow to defease the Bonds will be sufficient to effect the defeasance; (ii) an opinion of
counsel addressed to the Authority stating that such Bonds are defeased in accordance with the
Resolutions pursuant to which such Bonds have been issued; and (iii) any other items required
pursuant to the terms of the related resolutions and/or trust indentures or any items which may be
reasonably required by the Authority's counsel and (iv) an agreement by the Borrower to pay all fees
and expenses in connection with the defeasance of the Bonds. The Executive Director and the
Executive Director’s designees are hereby authorized and directed to take such actions as may be
necessary or appropriate in connection with any defeasance hereby authorized including partial or full
termination of the respective lease agreements and loan agreements related to the defeased Bonds and
the release of any mortgage or other security for Bonds to be defeased. '

Section 2.  The Executive Director and the Executive Director’s designees are hereby
authorized and directed to execute and deliver, and the Secretary or Assistant Secretary is hereby
authorized and directed to affix the seal of the Authority, if appropriate, to such documents as may be
necessary or appropriate or desirable in connection with the purposes set forth in Section 1 hereof,
such documents to be in such form as the officers executing the same may approve, such approval to
be conclusively evidenced by their execution thereof. - '



Section 3. The Executive Director and the Executive Director’s designees are hereby
authorized and directed to take such action as may be necessary or appropriate in order to effectuate
the purposes of this Resolution. o ' ‘

Section 4. All prior resolutions of the Authority or portions thereof inconsistent herewith
are hereby repealed.

Section 3. This Resolution shall take effect ten (10) days, exclusive of Saturdays, Sundays
and public holidays, after delivery to the Governor of the minutes of the meeting of the Authority at
which this Resolution is adopted or such earlier time as the Governor signs a statement of approval.

Mr. Rodriguez__ moved that the foregoing resolution be adopted as introduced and read,
which motion was seconded by __ Ms. Ungar__ and upon roll call the following members voted:

AYE: Roger B. Jacobs
Ridgeley Hutchinson
Louis Rodriguez
Katherine Ungar :
Andrew Sidamon-Eristoff (represented by Steven Petrecca)
Rochelle Hendricks (represented by Gregg Edwards)

NAY: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Joshua Hodes

The Chair thereupon declared said motion carried and said resolution adopted.

Defeasance of Borrower — 3/25/14



 EXHIBIT V

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE OPTIONAL REDEMPTION OF AUTHORITY
' BONDS UPON DIRECTION OF BORROWER -

WHEREAS, the New Jersey Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) was created as a
public body corporate and politic of the State of New Jersey pursuant to the New Jersey
Educational Facilities Authority Law (being Chapter 72A of Title 18A of the New Jersey
Statutes, as amended and supplemented), N.J.S.A. 18A:72A-]1 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has heretofore issued Revenue Bonds (the “Bonds™) for institutions
of higher education in New Jersey (the “Borrowers™) under and pursuant fo various resolutions
and trust indentures; and

WHEREAS, such Bonds are subject to optional redemption by the Authority at the times and at
the redemption prices set forth in the respective resolutions and/or trust indentures; and,

WHEREAS, the proceeds of each such issue of Bonds has been loaned to a Borrower; and,

WHEREAS, the Authority intends to authorize the redemption of each respective issue of Bonds
upon the direction of the Borrower to whom the proceeds of such issue have been loaned, all in
accordance with the provisions of the respective resolution and/or trust indentures pursuant to
which such Bonds were issued; '

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the New Jersey Educational Facilities
Authority, as follows:

Section1.  The Authority hereby consents to the optional redemption of Bonds in
accordance with the terms of the Resolutions and/or trust indentures pursuant to which such
Bonds were issued upon the direction of the Borrower to whom the proceeds of such Bonds were
loaned. The Executive Director and the Executive Director’s designees are hereby authorized
and directed to take such actions as may be necessary or approptiate in connection with the
foregoing redemption of the Bonds.

Section 2. The Executive Director and the Executive Director’s designees are hereby
authorized and directed to execute and deliver, and the Secretary or Assistant Secretary is hereby
authorized and directed to affix the seal of the Authority, if appropriate, to such documents as
may be necessary or appropriate or desirable in connection with the purposes set forth in Section
1 hereof, such documents to be in such form as the officers executing the same may approve,
such approval to be evidenced by their execution thereof.

~ Section 3. The Executive Director and the Executive Director’s designees are hereby
authorized and directed to take such actions as may be necessary or appropriate in order to
effectuate the purposes of this Resolution.

Section 4.  All prior resolutions of the Authority or portions thereof inconsistent
herewith are hereby repealed.



Mr. Hutchinson___ moved that the foregoing resolution be adopted as introduced
and read, which motion was seconded by ___ Ms. Ungar and upon roll call the following
members voted:

AYE: Roger B. Jacobs
Ridgeley Hutchinson
Louis Rodriguez
Katherine Ungar :
Andrew Sidamon-Eristoff (represented by Steven Petrecca)
Rochelle Hendricks (represented by Gregg Edwards)

NAY: ‘ None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Joghua Hodes

The Chair thereupon declared said motion carried and said resolution adopted.

Redemption of Borrower — 3/25/14



EXHIBIT VI
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RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION
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KRISTEN MIDDLETON

NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL
FACILITIES AUTHORITY

FOR 20 YEARS OF SERVICE

WHEREAS, on October 28, 1993, Kristen Middleton began her career with the New Jersey
Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”); and '

~ WHEREAS, on October 28, 2013, Ms. Middleton reached a 20-year milestone of
employment with the Authority, having served in various capacities including as Assistant
Controller since 2003; and

WHEREAS, during the entirety of Ms. Middleton’s tenure with the Authority she has
consistently achieved the highest standards of excellence in her professional work; and

WHEREAS, Ms. Middleton’s commitment of her time, knowledge, expertise and
professionalism to the accounting and fiscal management functions of the Authority have greatly
contributed to its success thereby benefiting Authority Members, staff and New Jersey’s public and
private colleges and universities; and '

WHEREAS, Authority Members and staff wish to acknowledge the outstanding
contributions that Ms. Middleton has made to the Authority and to extend their appreciation for her
dedication and exemplary service over the past 20 years. '

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Authority hereby expresses its sincere
appreciation to Ms. Middleton for her many and significant confributions to the Authority and to the
higher education community of the State of New Jersey over the past 20 years.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Authority hereby honors the employment service
of Ms. Middleton to the Authority and recognizes that her service has greatly contributed to the
success of the Authority and to the enhancement of campus facilities at New Jersey’s public and
private institutions of higher education, thereby benefiting all of the citizens of the State.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this Resolution of Appreciation be given to
Ms. Middleton as a tribute to her 20 years of service to the New Jersey Educational Facilities
Authority.



Mr. Hutchinson__ moved that the foregoing resolution be adopted as introduced and
read, which motion was seconded by ___‘Ms. Ungar__and upon roll call the following members
voted: ‘

AYE: Roger B. Jacobs
Ridgeley Hutchinson
Louis Rodriguez
Katherine Ungar
Andrew Sidamon-Eristoff (represented by Steven Petrecca)
Rochelie Hendricks (represented by Gregg Edwards)

NAY: None
ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT:  Joshua Hodes

The Chair thereupon declared said motion carried and said resolution adopted.

Middléton Appreciation — 3/25/14



EXHIBIT VH
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NEW JERSEY EDUCATIONAL
FACILITIES AUTHORITY

A N R IR T I NS

BOND SALE SUMMARY

Issue: Higher Education Equipment Leasing Fund Program Issue, Series 2014
| Consisting of:
$82,235,000 Series 2014 A; and
$7,105,000 Series 2014 B

Purpose: The Series 2014A Bonds are being issued to (i) fund grants fo public
higher education institutions to finance the costs of acquiring certain
property consisting of, or relating to, scientific, engineering, technical,
computer, communications or instructional equipment described in the
Borrower's application under the Program and (ii) paying certain
expenses in connection with the issuance of the Series 2014A Bonds.

The Series 20148 Bonds are being issued to (i) fund granis to private
higher education institutions to finance the costs of acquiring certain -
property consisting of, or relating to, scientific, engineering, technical,
computer, communications or instructional equipment described in the
Borrower's application under the Program and (i) paying certain
expenses in connection with the issuance of the Series 2014B Bonds.

Structure: Competitive, Fixed Rate

Final Maturity: June 1, 2023

True Interest Cost: 1.98%

- Pricing; January 23, 2014
Closing: January 30, 2014

Professionals on the Transaction:

Bond Counsel: Saul Ewing, LLP

Authority’s Counsel: Attorney General of the State of New Jersey
Winning Bidder: - J.P. Morgan Securities, LLC

Trustee: The Bank of New York Mellon

Trustee Counsel: McManimon, Scotland & Baumann, LLC



EXHIBIT VIIL
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NEW JERSEY EbUCATlONAL

FACLITES AUTHORLEY,
BOND SALE SUMMARY

Issue: Higher Education Technology Infrastructure Program Issue, Series 2014

Amount: $38,110,000

Purpose: The Series 2014A Bonds are being issued to (i) finance grants to
public and private institutions of higher education to fund a
portion of the costs of acquiring certain property consisting of,
or relating to, scientific, engineering, technical, computer,
communications or instructional equipment described in the
Borrower's application under the Program and (ii) paying certain
expenses of the Authority in connection with the issuance of the
Bonds. - -

Structure: Competitive, Fixed Rate

Final Maturity: June 1, 2028
True Interest Cost: 3.16%

Pricing: January 23, 2014
Closing: January 30, 2014

Professionals on the Transaction:

Bond Counsel: Saul Ewing, LLP

Authority’s Counsel: Attorney General of the State of New Jersey
Winning Bidder: Morgan Stanley & Co., LLC

Trustee: : The Bank of New York Mellon

Trustee Counsel: MecManimon, Scotland & Baumann, LLC



EXHIBIT IX
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A BOND SALE SUMMARY
Borrower: Montélair State University, Montclair, New Jersey
Issue: Series 2014 A
Amount: $189,365,000
Purpose: To provide funds to finance: (i) the refunding of all or a portion of the

Series 2002 F Bonds, the Series 2003 E Bonds, the Series 2003 L Bonds
and the Series 2006 A Bonds; (i) the financing of all or a portion of a
capital project consisting of (a) design, construction, equipping and
furnishing of a new facility of approximately 143,000 square feet for the

“Public University’s School of Business, including instructional and
research facilities, offices, serminar/conference rooms, library/student
(computer) facilities, and related support spaces, (b) design, construction,
equipping and furnishing of a new facility of approximately 60,000 square
feet, along with the redesign, renovation, furnishing and equipping of
Morehead Hall, for the Public University’s School of Communications and
Media, (c) redesign, renovation, equipping and furnishing of College Hall,
Partridge Hall and a facility for programs in art and design and
filmmaking, (d) design, construction, equipping and furnishing of a new
environmental and life sciences facility of approximately 107,500 square
feet, including instructional and research laboratories, research support and
equipment rooms, incubator laboratories, offices, seminar/conference
rooms and related support spaces and including demolition of the existing
structure and () replacement and upgrade of wired and wireless electronic
assets, (collectively, the “Series 2014 A Project”); (iii) funding capitalized
interest on a portion of the Bonds; and (iv) paying certain costs incidental
to the issuance and sale of the Bonds.

Structure: Negotiated, Fixed Rate
Final Maturity: July 1, 2044

True Interest Cost: 4.22%

NPV Savings: $4,161,794/7.76%
‘Pricing: March 4, 2014

Closing: April 3,2014



Professionals on the Transaction:

Bond Counsel:
Authority’s Counsel:
Senior Manager:
Co-Manager:

Underwriter’s Counsel:
Trustee:
Trustee Counsel:

GluckWalrath LLP
Attorney General of the State of New Jersey

Barclays Capital, Inc

" Fidelity Capital Markets

J.P. Morgan

Morgan Stanley

Ramirez & Co., Inc.

Wolff & Samson PC

The Bank of New York Mellon
McManimon, Scotland & Baumann, L.LC



